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INTRODUCTION.

The appearance of this little book needs no apology. We have an
associational history that is full of instruction, and to any one who will
study the facts and figures there is much encouragement for the future.
Many of our people are glad to have the privilege of being Baptists, are
proud of their history, and are anxious that a record of their struggles
and triumphs be handed down to their children. Itis true, that we are
too busy making history to write much, but a collection of reliable mate-
rials brought together in convenient form, is likely to be a consolation to
many who are now in the thick of the fight, as well as an inspiration
to those who will come after. The failures of the past should teach wis-
dom to the present, and show how to reach great success in the future.
Not one, even of the coolest blooded of our brethren, can doubt the splen-

" d1d opportunities of the young and energetic Ohio Valley Association;
and it is to be devoutly hoped, that the new body will accomplish fully,
what the two weaker did only in part. The far-seeing wisdom of form-

_ing the Ohio Valley Association will reveal itself in the future, and
future historians will warmly thank us for preserving the early and im-
portant records of their great body.

As there are two rivers that unite to form the Ohio, so there were
two associational streams that tended to form the Ohio Valley Associa-
tion, which two streams were equal in importance and iden‘ical in pur-
pose, although unequal in length and different in circumstances. The
one stream was twenty years old and badly choked with indifference and
worldly conformity; the other v.as ten years old, and in addition to these
was stubbornly opposed by a strong, prudent, wealthy and inteliectual
Catholic population. To bu ld up strong churches, and develop weak
ones, to create a Baptist sentiment and build an Institute for the educa-
tion of the masses of our young peopie, an efficient association of the
churches in this section of Kentucky was absolutely necessary.

The territory of the Ohio Valley Association embraces one of the
finest sections of Kentucky. It commences with Green river on the
northeast and extends to the Tradewater on the southwest, a distance of
about 50 miles, an extends south of the Ohio river about an average dis-

_ tance of 25 miles. Immediately through this country runs the
Ohio Valley railroad, which our brethren. Dr. P. G. Kelsey and Col.
Jordan Giles, were iuastrumental in building, and it is likely that the As-
sociation got its name from the railroad. The association includes Hen-
derson county, which was formed in 1798, and named after Col. Richard
Hendersen, of North Carolina; it has 422 square mi es, 252,910 square
acres. and had 20,536 inhabitants in 1890. Union county was formed in

1811, has 880 square miles, 183,602 square acres, and 18,229 inhabi\tants

in 1890. Webster county was formed in 1860, has 840 square miles: 17,196
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HISTORY OF THE OHIO VALLEY ASSOCIATION,

tion met with Grave Creek in 1818. Thomas Ross was chosen Moderator,
and Isaac McCoy, missionary to the wild Indians, preached the intro-
ductory sermon (Spencer 1T 270). September 1820, the following churches
went into the organization of Highland Association, at Highland church
in Union county, viz: Bethel, Cano- Creek, Grave Creek, Highland, Lit-
tle Bethel; but the Highland Association in 1835 took such a strong posi-
tion against missions, Bible societies, etc., ‘*that Little Bethel, Grave
Creek and Highland churches withdrew from its fellowship, and the fol-
lowing year, formed Little Bethel Associatioa (Spencer II. 489). Some
reasons why the new Association was formed are ‘‘its repeated violation
of the spirit and letter of its constitution: 1st, bfr appointing committees
to determine matters which belonged exclusively to the churches; 2d.
by nullifying acts of the churches, and, 3d, by appending to its min-
utes of 1835 that document known in vhis section as Harraldson’s Bull,
which we ccnsider an infringement on the rights of the churches, and
which contains grossly false charges against Baptist preachers of the
highest standing for piety and usefalness” (Id). The churches in our
territory remained with the Little Bethel Association until 1868; during
the time, several of them practiced feet-washing and declared themselves
against all benevolent institutions, but made it no bar of tellowship,
(See Hist. of Grave Cr. Ch. Min, 1871).

SEcTION 1. The pastors of Grave Creek church were from North
Carolina, Virginia and Kentucky; Wm. Bourline served about two years,
possibly until his death; then John Welden and Job Hobbs ‘‘attended the
church.” The latter left the care of the church in 1818 and was followed
by John Dorris who served until 1829, and he was succeeded by William
Hatchitt, who was ‘“‘pastor until his death, in 1860, although he had an
assistant, on account of feeble health for many years;” T. L. Garrett as-
sisted in 1835, K. G. Hay in 1840, Wm. Whayne in 1842, then the pastor’s
son, A. "Hatchitt served one year, possibly in 1852, J. G. How-
ard in 1833, William Owen until 1858, and again K. G. Hay un-
til 1867. J. B. Haynes was then pastor and he was foilowed by A. J.
Miller in 1870, and John F. James was pastor in the autumn of 1871;in
the antumn of 1872 Judge P. H. Lockett was chosen pastor and served
with much success until the spring of 1882. Then L. C. Tichenor was
pastor from December 1882 until December 1886; J. R .Kenuerly took pas._
toral charge in April 1887 and served until 1889. Since then Bro. W. W,
Schwerdtfeger has preached to the church. The church has sent out sev-
eral colonies, has had some baptisms, and for the last two years has im-~
proved on the regular line of mission work.

SEcTION 2. The second oldest church is Highland in Union county.
Two churches especially helped in its organization November 17, 1812,
The history of Highland church says, ‘“with help from Flat Creek church,

Hopkins county, Ky.,” this help from Hopkins county seemed to have
been John Bourland. Edward Berry. James Hester and Reuben Owen,
and from Grave Creek, Elders Job Hobbs, John Grantham, John Welden,
and Brethren James Street and Elijah King. Elder Bourland was chosen






















































VIS

I

HISTORY OF THE OHIO VALLEY ASSOCIATION, 20

J. Miller was chosen Moderator, A. Hatchitt. Clerk, and J. B. Moody
preached the Introductory Sermon; it was deferred till night, the text
was not given in the minute, and the only instance where the text of the
Introductory Sermon is not known in all the history of the two Associa-
tions. The Moderator being in poor health, Prof. S. A. Chambers, Prin-
cipal of the Henderson Public Schools, and Isom Johnson were chosen As-
sistant Moderators. The visitors were quite numerous: J. W. Rust. of
Bethel Female College, J. W. Warder, State Board, W. P. Harvey, Sun-
day School Board, A. B. Cabaniss, Western Recorder, J. B. Moody,
Gleaner, A. B. Miller, Indiana, James Kedsley, ‘‘Independent Evange
list, ” Judge M. C. Givens, Little Bethel Association, Miss Mary Hol-
linsworth, Orphans’ Home, &c. The Mission Board reported several im-
portant items and ‘‘regrets the necessity for such a report as the facts
require us to make.” Itsays: ““A. J. Miller, D. D., was appointed our

" financial agent ; but at his request, on account of his broken health. Rev.

J. B. Roll was appointed assistant agent,” and ‘‘Bro. Roll entered at once
upon his work, and for a short time met with encouraging success. ” A.
Hatchitt was appointed missionary, but was not able to do any work :
Bro. Roll was appointed missionary and J. T Farley financial agent
“Bro. Roll was instructed to go to Pleasant Valley and hold a meeting.
We have not received any report from him ; he seems to have become dis-
couraged and abandoned the work,” as another John did long ago. (Acts.
15:38). ‘“With no missionary in the field. and the best time for collect- -
ing having passed, Bro. Farley thought it best not to undertake the can-
vass. The Board met September 8th, and appointed A. B. Miller, D. D.,
to go to Corydon and hold a two weeks meeting, agreeing to pay half of
the exvenses of the meeting : the State Board assuming the payment of
the ohter half.” Dr, Miller went in September, and reports ‘‘much in-
difference on the parb of the church there towards the meeting. Failing
to get the full co-operation of the brethren he nevertheless preached on

_ day and night. He reports large congregations at night. but small in the

day.” The benevolence of the Association this year was about as fol-
lows :

Money collected by J. B. Roll as financial agent. .............. ... $48.00
BalancetframEprevious-year qw o 1l SR SRR e 30.54
Gt s iaiiay ROk Hn S R L VT DR S i L £ Al R A T300
Motney paiditorState Boardy, &< Fs e i s TR SN S B
N se RN et FABRRION Rt (R i a e e R R el on v R LR )

g ORI e 50T BT o DIV D) s S e MR SRS R N R 3 1)
Balance in hand of J. B. Roll, agent . ........ SRR s T S SN
Balance in the treasury....... : e HEERE (1)1
Public collection at the As\l)bldtl()ll [()1 Ol[)lldllb Ilome oSl £8.00)
Collection for the Colored Normal and Theological School ... . 5.18

So the Henderson county Association in 1883 gave only $82.04 for mis-
gions. The report on Sunday Schools said : <‘Out of ten churches, only
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Christian’s Relation.” Letters from the churches were read by W. P.jHar-
vey and Prof. A. F. Williams. Drs. J. W. Warder, J. M. Phillips, John
O’Bryan, D. S. Edwards and C. F. Steward were visitors, along with
several others. The Morganfield church, organized February 11, 1888,
was received into the Association. It was ascertained that the standing
committees on Literature and Foreign Missions would not be ready to
report, so the Moderator requested Ben M. Bogard ‘‘to write on said sub-
jects, and to present the reports when called on.” Dr. Phillips *begged
time to speak in the interest of the Ministers’ Aid Society. which was or-'
ganized by the General Association of Baptists at Eminence, Ky., June
21, 1888, and earnestly asked the body to take under her prayerful consid-

~ eration this noble institution, and appoint a committee to write and pre-

sent to the body a report on said subject,” (Min. p. 2). Rev. J. M. Phil-
lips, D. D., formerly pastor of the Baptist church, Chattanooga. Tenn.,

and more recently induced by the Henderson church, (iargely assisted by
the State Board,) to accept their pastorate, was a genuine power for good
throughout this section of Kentucky. This item is significant; **Dr. J.

M. Phillips, of Henderson County Association, asked the body to take un-

der her consideration the propriety of forming a union with hisAssociation;
stated that said Association desired that the two Associations become

one body; that the Henderson County Association was within itself a
weak body, and thought by uniting the strength of the two bodies much

more good could be accomplished. Dr. Phillips asked the Association to
appoint a committee to confer with him on the subject. By motion, a
committee was appointed for said purpose. and requested to report when
called on. The committee consisted of J. W. Hammack, J. B. Huin-
phrey, G. A. Robinson, T. E. Taylor and Elder S. W. Martin.” This.
special commitfee on the ‘“‘Proposed Union of Associations” said as fol-
lows :

“Your committee on the proposed union of the Unicn County and
Henderson County Associations beg leave to report : That we very heart-
ily endorse the proposition, and for the purpose of effecting a union, rec-
ommend the appointment of a committee of five brethren of this body,
who shall be authorized to visit the Henderson County Association at its
meeting next week, and make overtures from this body with reference to
a union. We also recommend that in the event of favorable action on

~ the part of the Henderson County Association on the proposed union,

this committee shall be authorized to call a meeting of this Association.
in joint session with that of the Henderson County Association, to effect
the union, and arrange for the future work of the united body. We also
recommend that the publication of the minutes of this body be withheld
until this committee has had time to perform its work and furnish a re-
port of the same for publication in the minutes. We would recommend
as a name ‘The Ohio Valley.” T. X. TAYLOR, Chairman.” (Min. pp. 9-10.)
There is no uncertainty either in the excellent style or the meaning ,
£
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: Mis- |Orph'ns|No. of|Schol-| Bap- |[Mem-
Yr.! Place. siors. | Home. | S. S.| ars. |tisms.| bers
1884 Highland $B145 $3605 T | 84| 17 o4
1885 Woodland 238 87| 36000 8 | 320 | 124 1103
1883 Zion 217 45| 41 40| 8 | 350 171 | 1204
1887 Clayville 266 45 1570 & | 214 | 91 | 1283
1888 Bethany 425761 1308 11 | 610 | 136 | 1344

The facts indicated by these figures show a gradual development in
Baptist enterprises in the Union County Association; it is not surprising
that our people of the Henderson County Association wished to be asso-
ciated with such anintelligent and missionary body of Christians.

The committes on the union of the two Associations reported to the
churches of the Union County Association, (which report was published
on page 14 of the minutes of 1888), “"that it met with the approbation of
the Henderson County Association.” For an account of the meeting that
effected the union, the reader is referred to another chapter of this his-
tory.

SecTioN 4. Twentieth session of the Henderson County Association.
It was held with Zion church, October 19th and 20th, 1888; J. M. Phil-
lips, D. D., was chosen Moderator, W. B. Swann, Clerk, and the Intro-
ductory Sermon was preached by Rev. T. E. Jasper, from 1 John 2:6.

EldersJ. W. Warder. W. P. Harvey, J. S. Felix, and Profs. Rust and Will-
iams; and Brethren T. E. Taylor. H. C. Snider, U. H. Threlkeld, G. A.
Robinson. J. G. Christian, J. W. Hammack, C. H. Gregston and B. M.
Bogard were present from Union County Association. *‘Rev. C. H. G reg-
ston presented to the Association a communication from Union County
Association, making overtures for a union of the two Associations. This
communication was favorably reeeived by the body,and, by vote, the Mod-
erator was instructed to appoint a committee to confer with the messengers
from Union County Association.The chair appointed the following: J.
H. Craddock, A. Hatchitt, Isom Johnson, Steve Gibson, Thos. L. Wat-
son, Wi E. Haynes, Samuel E. Spencer.” (Min. p. 4). At the meeting of
the Henderson County Association in 1887, it seems, that Dr. Phillips, the
Assistant Moderator, volunteered to attend Union County Association
on this important subject, (See Min, of Union County Association p. 2).
The regular order of business was suspended, and the overture from
Union County Association was taken up; ‘‘after conciliating speeches by
various brethren, the Association adopted the report of the committee
recommending that each church in the Association appoint a dele-
gate to meet delegates from Union County Association at Corydon,
Thursday before 4th Sunday in November, for the purpose of ‘consum-
mating a union of the two bodies,” (Min. p. 5). For the meeting for said
union, see farther on. This last session of the Henderson County Asso-

- ciation was full of interest.
On the subject of Education, Profs. Rust and Williams spoke, the
latter “‘sustained his well-deserved reputation as the orator of Southern
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Orp’n No. Schol- |Bap

Vo Piace. Missions. home. [Sch’ls| ars. |t'm. Members_
1884/ Bethel RS 18006 g el 9| 6811134
1885 Cherry Hill | 190 15 48 65 11 | 801133 1 1y,
1886 Grave Creek ‘Weareguilty” report| 9 |H’'nd160 1111102/
1887 Mt. Pleasant | 339 50 | 88 lojrep’rt| Prize | 174{1328
1888 Zion ! 260 152 €1, 50 00] 31 | 817 | 136[1470

Underneath these facts lie hidden terrible conflicts with moral evil ;
Baptists ought to read their history aright, and be convinced that ours is a
life-and-death struggle against sin in all its forms; some of the greatest
are worldly conformity, indifference to our holy religion, covetousness,
and slack-twisted church relations. But as sure as God reigns, our divine
cause is forging to the front. Our pzople and their work in the two Asso-
ciations had, in 1888, 22 churches, 2,814 members, 22 Sunday Schools, 1,487
scholars and reported 272 baptisms, (i36 from each Association,) $685.91
for missions, $64.03 for Orphans’ Homs, and $401.95 for the ‘‘Ministers’
Aid Society.” Certainly the new Association will come into possession
of as fine a chance as ever one did to accomplish a great and far-reaching
work! Itshould be remembered, however, that Cherry Hill, Bethel and
New Hope, in Henderson county, and Highland, New Harmony. Pleasant
Ridge an2 Utley's Chapel, ix Union and Webster counties, did not go into
the organization of Ohio Valley Association, in all, 7 churches and 695
members. But possibly, all were in favor of the union except Bethel,
which refused and called for a letter.

SeerioN 5. Itis, perhaps, well, while recording the final sessions of
the two f)riginnl Associations, to make brief mention of some of the
leading spirits who labored and died during the existence of their respec-
tive Associations. Of course, only a brief mention is possible here, Hen-
derson County Association minutes are full on obituaries.

(1.) - REv. A. J. MiLLER, D. D. This able and useful minister was
born in Hardin county, Kentucky, January 7, 1839, and died at Ziozs, in
Henderson county, December 7, 1883. He was one of the prime movers:
in the formation of the Henderson County Association, and within its
bounds he spent nearly all the balance of hislife, except some three years
as pastor of the Carrollton Baptist church, Missouri. He attended a
graded school at Hickman, Ky., and also Madison College, West Tennes-
see, which suspended during the war. Elder Miller was ordained in 1861,
and was pastor in Henderson. Ky., in 1863. He returned from Missouri
in 1877, He preached over 4,000 sermons, baptized nearly 1,000 persons.

. was often Moderator of the Henderson County Association. and Chair-
man of the Mission Board. His first wife was a Miss Hicks, daughter of
Brother Arthur Hicks, and sister of Mrs. J. H, Tillotson, Hebbardsville,
Of this union there are several children ; his second wife was Miss Sallie
Gibson, niece of Deacons B. F, and George B. Martin, of Henderson
county : of this union there are two children, whom the writer baptized
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Into the Corydon church, in 1892, where they and their mother live,
assisted by “The Baptist Ministers’ Aid Society,” at Owensboro. This
brother’s remains sleep in an almost unmarked grave on J. H. Tillotson's
farm near Hebbardsville.

(2.) -DEacoN W. P. BENNETT, of Zion church, was born in 1814, and
died August 3, 1884. He was converted in Dr. J. L. Burrows revival
meeting in Hendrson, Ky., in 1839, and was baptized by Dr. Burrows into
the fellowship of the Henderson church. He was Moderator of the council
that met in 1868 to organize the Henderson County Association. From
that time until his death he was interested in its prosperity, and gave of
his time and means to forward its interests. The notice of the Associa-
tlon in 1834 of him says: “Few men with His means and opportunities
have wrought a nobler work upon the generation in which they lived
than he.” Several of his children are with us. heart and hand; in the
Master’'s work. He was his pastor’s friend and was greatly appreciated;
in his day, and after his death, his name is not forgotten.

(3.) Deacoxy MiLes H. COOKSEY, of Zion church, Henderson ccunty.
This dear brother was born in Virginia, ‘‘and in early life came to Hen:
derson county. Kentucky. where he lived a long aud useful life, which
ended triumphantly January 30, 1885.” (Min. page 8.) The same record
goes on : *‘he was the father, grandfather and great-grandfather of a
large posterity, some of which are among the pillars of our churches.” 1t
was well and widely known throughout the Henderson County Asso-
ciation thut this faithful servant of the Lord was devoted to his family.
church, pastor and the Baptist cause generally. God blessed him with
ample means, and we rejoice to know that, in return, he honored God
with his substance. His name is cherished to-day by his children and
brethren. The works of the righteous follow them after death, both in
this and the future life.

(4.) ROBT. A. FARLEY, AND WIFE, MARY M. FARLEY. Bro. Farley was
born in Virginia. August 5, 1802, and died in Henderson county, Ky..
April 16, 1836 ; Sister Mary Farley was born in Lunenburg county, Va..
October 24, 1805, and died in Henderson county, Ky., April 21, 1886. Dr.
H. H. Farmer remarks in Min. of 1885, concerning these sainted servants
of the Master. ¢I have often thought the lives of humble men were as
worthy of being recorded, and certainly of being commended as those of
of the most wealthy and distinguished.” Well said. When well, Bro.
Farley was counstant to his church: after he lost his health, his wife's
attention to him in his sore affliction was perfectly beautiful. -‘She
rapidly sank and died in eleven days, 7 after that of her husband. They
were both memb ‘s of Grave Creek church. Fivesons and two daughters
were left to bless their church and the world.

(5.) Avstin F. CrenxsgaAw. This brother was born in Henderson
county, Ky., March 21, 1819, and died May 6, 1896, Dr. Farmer says: ‘‘He

was baptised by Elder Wm. Morrison and united with Canoe Creek
church about the year 1842.”  He died n member of Mt. Pleasant chureh.
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item was ordered : “‘upon motion, the Clerk was instructed to purchase
a suitable blank bonk in which to kesp and preserve a vecord of the pro-
ceedings of each meeting of this Association, beginning with the meet-
ing of the orzanization at Corydon, Kv.,” (Min. p. 8). The writer re-
members with much satisfaction having something to do with this move-
ment to preserve the records of the Association, but a question arose in
his mind, about the probable fate of the records of the two old = Associa-
fions in a short while, when the scatiered minutes are destroyed; hence
a decision to write and publish this History.

When several reports were made considerable warmth was manifest-
ed, especially, that on District Missions; a majority of the Committee
seemed to encourage an independent attitude as 1egards the State Board,
and employ two Missionaries in the Association, preach to weak churches
and supply the destitution, but a substitute prevailed, continuing co-op-
eration with the General Association and also doing all that was possible
in supplying our own destitution. Under the report of Sunday Schools,
the Association demanded that all means coming into the Treasury for
schools be strictly applied that way, but this wholesome order has not
been followed. Mission Sunday School work is practically dead in the
Ohio Valley Association. The report on Literature by Judge John F.

- Lockett was one of the best; a splendid essay on the subject. T. A. Con-
* way’s report on State of Religion was significant, coming from a mere

boy and at the first session after the union of the two Associations—
“the information gathered from the reading of the letters, the favorable
reports of those who labored in our bounds, the fruits of their la-
bors, the organization of three churches, which were admitted into this
pody, the glorious report of our Treasurer, all indicate that. we are by
the favor and wisdom of God gradually advancing in that higher, inval-
uable growth of the soul, and show that our hearts and God’s hand are
in the work.”

Chairman Geo. B. Marton, of the Mission Board, reported 10 days’
work done at Walnut Bottom, which resulted in 19 additions to the
young Ohio Valley church; also aided Mt. Olive and New Hope churches.
T. C. Carter held a meeting at Black School House, resulting in 15 addi-
tions to New Harmony. B. M. Bogard held a 25 days’ meeting at Spotts-
ville, resulting in 34 baptisms; “‘the Board being to some extent instru-
mental in securing the services of G. H. Simmons in a two weeks’ meeting
each at Audubon, Morganfield, Corydon and Uniontown, where very effi-
cient work was done anl a general interest awakened, we set aside a small
amount as additional remuneration. In August Bros. T. N. Compton
and Dexter Whittinghill spent 30 days in a meeting at Hitesville, (which
was a glorious one,) where 64 souls wereborn of God, 51 of whom were
baptized and united with Highland church,” (Min. p. 12). T. A. Conway
preached 9 days at Willow Grove, with good interest, but no visible re-
sults; in February Bro. S. H. Morgan, at the instance of the Board,
*heid a meeting of 14 days at Bellfield, which resulted in 9 professions,









10 AISTORY OF THE OHIO VALLEY ASSOCIATION.

From the above it is interesting to ses, that there were 404 baptisms,
2,899 members, 28 churches, and 16 Sunday Schools with 1089 scholars en-
" rolled. The mission fund was $640.89, pastors’ salaries $4,525.25 and gener-
alexpenses were $5,760.74: the value of church property was $29,450. There
< wasgiven $i7.77 tor the Orphans’ Home, and in ‘cash and bonds $460.45 for
the Ministers’ Aid Society. The report on Obituaries mentioned the
‘deaths of Deacons Isom Johnson, of Henderson. and James Threlkeld. of
Uniontown; the latter was born Jnly 3,1803. in Henderson county.tand died.
March 3, 1888, in Union county: also Brother J. G. Vancsand W. C.
Hamner. but the report gave no data whatever couerning iaeir iives, la-
“borsand characters. Yet it seems that all these were very useful men in -
their churches. Bro. Joinson left saveral children who are church mem
bers; Bro. Threlkeld, for long years was the main pillar in Uniontown
church, left two children, U. H. Threlkeld and Mrs. Mary Rush, who
are valued members. The writer supposes that the noted Clerk, W. E.
Vance, is the son of the one mentionad above: Deacon Hamner left a good
nawme among his brethren, to ]udwe from what has been heard by the
writer
SECTION 2, SECOND SESSION OF UHIO V\l LEY:- ASSOCIATION, OCTOBER 16—
18, 1890,

* This session of the Association met in the basement of the Henderson
Baptist church, on Thursday. at 10 o'clock. Religiousservices were opened
by siaging ‘“Blest Be the Tie,” etc.. C. H. Gregston read the 19th Psalm.
and S. P. Forgy ied in prayer. The Introductory Sermon was deferred
till night. The Moderator being absent. by mutual request I. M. Wise
cailed the Association to order and organized the body. G. H. Simmons
and T. A. Conway read the letters from the churches: T. L. Watson was
chosen Moderator; W. E. Vance, Clerk, and W. M. Carr, Treasurer. Prof.
Williams led in prayer for God’'s gracious presence and guidance during
“the meeting. Bethel church, Henderson county, *‘returned a letter which
was granted to her hy this body at its organization, and by motion the
chure ‘1 was3 cor lially recaived baick into this body” (min. p.2); also New
Hope. No. 2 (Geneva), organized October 15, 1890, presented a letter ask-
ing for admission. :*This church failed to present her Covenant and Ar-
ticles of Faith, but stated in the letter that it had adopted that which is
beld by the Corydon Baptist church,” which, after some discussion., was
received.

The following represents the beginning of a series of an\netles and
hopes in the Ohio Valley Association. viz.: **Upon motion, the Moderator

was requested to appoint-a special committee. composed of one member
trom each church, whose duty it shall be to confer with the Committee
on Education. Schools and Colleges. and they together to consider the
advisability of establishing a hmh school within the bounds of this As-
sociation. The committee appomted by the Moderator was as follows.’

Then follows the list of both churches and committeemen, but only the
latter are given here: I. M. Wise, Chairman. R. Hollingsworth, T. J.
McGraw, S. B. Withers. W. B. Swann, Walter Humphrey. B. . Martin,
J. H. Tillotson. M. G. Hicks, L, Brooks Wm. Holcomb, Wm Sartin, R.
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A, Alley, G. C. Lll]ev, F. T. Gatton, J. W. Conway, C. H. Gregston,
Tnos. Hammack, S P. Forgy, J. C. Cra.m G. L. Dial, T. W. Buckner. W.
B. Brooks, T. W. Haynes, S C.. Me@itl:, J4C Taylor, \Vin: Bu§by and
J. T. Rush (Min. p. 3). This large committee discussed the matter com-
m'tted to them parts of two days, and then reportad: -*We have tried to
make a thorough canvass of the sentiment of the churches in 1'é_ga.rd to
the propriety of originating a Baptist high school somewhere within our
bounds. Not a single church has offered. as we think, an insurmountable
difficulty to the much-needed institution. Your committee earnestly rec-
ommend to the Ohio Valley Association the following considerations and
measures: 1st—That a well-equipped Baptist high school in our Associ-
ation is a great necessity:; 2d—That the great masses of our young people
ought to have better educational advantages: 31--That our people are
well able and possibly can be induced to enlist in the important work,
and build and put in active operation at no distant day a school of aca-
demical grade; 4th—That we recommend to the Association the following
Annual Committee of fifteen members on education. etc., five constitut-
ing a quorum, name'y: I. M. Wise. T. E. Taylor. W. M. Carr, J. S. Mc-
Cormick, R. Hollingsworth. U. H. Threlkeld. J. W. Conway. J. R.
Humphrey, G. B. and B. F. Martin, Thos. Hammack. S. C. McGill, S. B.
Withers. Ed Bennett and J. H. Tillotson, whose duty it shall be to can-
vass the field, hold educational conventions and report at our next meet-
ing. I. M. Wise, Chairman,” (Min. p. 12). The regular Committee on
Education said’ on the matter: **We would earnestly request that this
Association adopt the measures set forth in the report ot the Special Com-
mittee on High School, when the said report shall have been presented to
this body, and in the event of your favorable action in regard to the mat-
ter contained in the report. we would further urge that the members of
the churches composing this Association. so far as possible, co-operate
with the proposed Annual Committee in this important movement. T. L.
Watson, Chairman,” (p. 12). The two reports were read ana discussed to-
gether ; “Much interest was manifested on the subject of education, and
quite a number‘of speakers urged the importance of establishing a Bap-
tist high school within the bounds of Ohio Valley Association.” (Min. p. 5).
The present writer was chosen to the new position, in the Associa-
tion, to preach the Doctrinal Sermon nexft year. and as ‘‘Historian of the
Association,” (Min. p. 8). T. A. Conway was requested to present the
claims of New Hope No. 2 (Gengva), 1n their siruggle to build a house of '
worship, after the Sermon at night; said Sermon was preached by C. H.
Gregston from 1 Peter 2:5, on ‘*Spirituality of the Church.” It was one
of the ablest sermons by.one of the ablest preachers in Western Ken-
tucky. T. A. Conway closed in prayer and then explained our Mission
work at Geneva, and asked for a collection to help buiid a Baptist house
of worship; I. M. Wise ‘““also came forward and urged that the Baptists
present assist generously. A collection was then taken amounting to
$136.69.” (Min. p. 4). It wasone of the hard est collections that ever this
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There was much disturbance among the charches caused by the periec-
tionist heresy. as the fifth resolution shows. *“That we adhere strictly to
the Bible doctrine of sanctification in so far as personal devotedness
and consecrat on is weant: bat that we denounce as unscériptaral and
heretical a beliet n)w in some quarters prevailing, that mman is in this
life susceptible to a state of personal perfection or sinlessness, iin.l that
the preaching of such a belief is not Baptistic. and that we drop from our
list of ministers the names of any who teach it.” (Mia. p. 15). The
meaning of this was to not recognize, as Baptist preachers at least one
who was teaching it, and said that he was a Baptist preacher in good
standing. and was doinz our cause very great harm. The printer got it
minutes” insteal of ‘.ninisters,™ and so the resolution was practically
worthless; but the next session of the Association mentioned the heretic’s
name, as this history will show. Tue report on Obituaries gave notice
that *‘37 of our members” died during the year, but gave neither names
nor dates.

SECTION 8. THIRD SES3IoN OF OHIO VALLEY ASSOCIATION, OCrossi 15—

17,1891,

This was held in the new Baptist church, Morganfield, Ky. The
Moderator being absent. C. H. Grezston read the 40th Psalm, and I. M.
Wise led in prayer. aft r which "I M. Wise was chosen Moderator pro
tem, and T. B. Miller, temperary Clerk. A. T. Cinnamond and Geo. H.
Cox read the letters irom the churches. 1. M. Wise was chosen sloder-
ator and T. B. Miller, Clerk, and W. M. Zarr, Treasurer. The By-Laws
were amended, so that the one getting the second highest vote was con-
sidered Assistant Moderator, and J. M. Sallee was chosen. Pastor Gregs-
ton ‘‘made an address of welcome in behalf of ” Morganfield Church, and
by request of the Moderator, J. M. Sallee responded. Hebbardsville Bap-
tist church, having been organized July i2, 1891. with 26 members, on the
Articles of Faith and Church Covenant found in Pendleton’s Manual, was
cordially received into the Association. I. M. Wise,who attended the South-
ern Baptist Convention ar Birmingham, Ala..in the place of C. H. Greg-
ston, made his report, and was p1il513.0) out of tha mission funds. C. H.
Gregston was chosen to the next Southern Baptist Convention at Atlanta,
Ga. “Motion was made to provide payment of delegates’ expenses to said
Conventicn in some other way than out of the mission fund, as heretofore
provided, was warmly discussed, but lost,” (Min. p. 5). This decision was
not final, however, as the record further on will show. The writer begins
to feel that he was on the wrong side of this practical question, convinced
more by the ease in practice, than by weizht of arzument in theory against
it. The history of Henderson church was read by the Associational his-
torian, an 1 ordered filed in the Book of Records. All Clerks should see
that this is carefully done, if the histories are not published in the min-
utes; if the latter is done, of course. they are preservel.

The Introductory Sermon being deferred till night, it was then
preached by J. M. Sallee from 9th chapter of Acts, ‘‘The Life and Char-

/
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acter of Saul of Tarsus.” This Was pastor Sallee’s first sermon to the As-
sociation, and it was well receiyed: on the second night, the only Doc-
trinal Sermon before the Association was preached by 1. M. Wise, from
Col. 2:3-7. Subject: “Trus Religion--How Obtained; How Cultivated;
How Defended. and How Propagated;’ after the sermon, Prof. Williams
addressed the congregation on Education. Bro. G. H. Cox was given in cash
and boad, $56.45 for the Aid Society; if there was any collection or money
given during the year for the Orphans’ Home, the minute does nof show
1t. The matter of the Association’s High School was set at 10 o’clock on
the 2nd day of the meeting, and the Annual Committee made the follow-
ing report through its Chairman, I. M. Wise.

BAPTIST HIGH SCHOOL.

*The Annual Committee on the proposed High School beg leave to re-
port:.That there is a great demand andactive interest among the Baptists
of this section, to build up and foster more academies and educate the
masses ranging between the Public Schools and Colleges and the Universi-
ties. Our intellectual safety and strengthin the future depend largely on
what we do now in thismatter. Other Associations of Kentucky Baptists
are vigorously pushing this work, many of whom have less members and
wealth than we. Your committee rejoice to have met with so much en-
couragement in this enterprise among the churches and communities
wishing its location. We are really embarrassed with the number of ex- °
cellent places that offer us land and cash. Considering this, with the
general interest manifested among our people, the actual needs of such a -
school, the religious and financial prosperity of the Baptists of this Asso-
ciation, we feel thai we must embrace our seemingly Providential op-
portunities or surrender them to others. We recommmend : That the As-
sociation consider well and prayerfully the location, health, morals, pres-
ent and prospective developments of the community in which it locates
the school; that this Association appoint a committee of seven members
—three from Union, three from Henderson and one from Webster coun-
ty, who shall nominate in a written repost a Board of Trustees of 2i
members, in three classes of seven each, whose cime shall expire respect-
ively—first class in three years, second class in two years and third class
in one year, and their successors to be chosen by this Association annual-
ly. The duties of this board shall be, afrer its organization and election
of a President, Secretary and Treasurer from its members, to name the
school, locate it. secure a charter. receive donations of land, money and
other property in trust for said School. and when they shall have secured
at least ten acres of ground in an eligible location and at least $5,000
cash and good subscriptions, to move forward in the work aund call on -

the churches and individuals in the Association, and out of it. if nee(l be,
for another $5,000 and erect suitable buildings to cost not lsss than $10,-

000, for the accommodation of not less than 250 pupils. - We call atten-
tion to the foilowing communities that have expressed a desire- tor tne
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together with God.”" I.M., Wise was chosen Moderator. J. M. Sallee;
Assistant Moderator, and P. B. Miller. Clerk. Sebree Baptist church
applied for membership through its messengers, and presented its Arti-
cles of Faith and Covenant, which were referred to a special committee,
and after due consideration, the c¢hurch was cordially received. C. H.
Gregston, delegate to the last Southern Baptist Convention, made his re-
port, “from which it appeared that the visit was pleasant and profitable
to him,” (Min. p. 8). W. W. Schwerdtfeger was chosen for the next
Convention, and a collection of $12.01 was raised, thus changing the plan
heretofore adoped of paying such expenses out of the Mission funds. A
motion was put asking the churches to send up a special fund each year

for this purpose, which has not been extensively done. There wasa

cash collection of $29.30 taken for the Ministers’ Aid Society, and $16 for

the Orphans’ Home. Itis likely that this session will go down in histo-

ry, as the one when “*The Sturgis Male and Female Institute,” was defi-

nitely located: it was seriously regretted that the offer of Henderson

City of ‘‘six acres of valuabieand desirable land to the Baptist school”

reached the Trustees too late. The report of the Board of Trustees:
“BAPTIST HIGH SCHOOL,

**The Board of Trustees held its first meeting Octobar 16, 1891, in
Morganfield. Rev. C. H. Gregston was chosen Chairman of Board and
T. E. Taylor. S-cretary, W. M. Carr, I. M. . Wise, J. F. Lockett, T. E.
Taylor and (. L. Dial were appointed a committee to receive definite prop-
ositions as to donations. Morganfield offered as an inducement for loca-
ting school., 11 acres of land and $2,100; Sturgis, 13 acres land and $5,000;
‘White Sulphur Springs, 10 acres Jand and $3,100: Thompson Station, 10
acres land and $3.300. Committee on value of land reported Sturgis lots
worth $3,500: Morganfield, $2,200; Thompson Station, $1,000, and White
Sulphur Springs, $1,000. It was moved and carried by more than two-
thirds majority to locate the school at Sturgis, it being the only place
that had come up with the amount required to secure the location. Said
locating was based upon the proposition of Col. Jordan Giles, in behalf
of the Cumberland Iron and Land company, to give 13 acres of land and
$1,000 to the school. But the said company, on July 1. 1892, witkdrew,
by telegrawm. their proposition, made through Col. Giles, to give 13 acres

.

of land and $1,000, limiting their proposition to one square of land and no

money. By reason of the unsettled condition of affairs, the Chairman
called a meeting September 23. 1892, at Henderson. Ky.. at which meet-
ing Mr. Richert, then the President of the Cumberland Iron and Land
company, stated that said company would give the four squares but no
money. At another meeting of the Board of Trustees on October = 13,

1892. the said company through G. L. Dial, furnished information that it
wouid confirin the first proposition and give the four squares of land.
about 13% acres. and §$1,000 to the school. We, your committee, into whose
hands this work has been committed. recommend to the Association that
it earnestly prosecute the work which you haye put on foot. C. H. Greg-
wton, Chairman.” (Min. p. ).
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ture distributed among the people,” (Min. pp. 11, 12). The report on res-
olutions this year made no deliverances on sanctification. the double-bar-
reled ones of last year had effectually done that work: Cherry Hill passed
a series of resolutions that were intended to cut off all her members that
would not surrender the belief of perfectionism or promise not to teach
it, quite a number considered themselves affected by this, and were in
consequence considered by the church as excluded: this was done after
due notice had been given of the nature of the action, some remained
and were more quiet. others blustered around on the outside. This ex-
clusion by resolution. which is generally done only in cases of widespread
heresy, some did not want to understand. and said they were not excluded,
for example, Elder A. A. Niles: he would not give up his ordination pa-
pers as a Baptist minister. and was published in the Western Recorder.
This session was full of the missionary spirit. ““that cur ministers and
members be more earnest in their work for the Master and make
greater efforis to encourage the mission work.” The death of Elder S. W.
Martin was noticed, with much sadness; although the report gives no data
for his life and labors. He was an able preacher and a staunch Baptist:
he left a wife, a son and two daughters. (See table of statistics, p. 51.)
SECTION §. FIFTH SESSION OF THE OHIO VALLEY ASSOCIATION, OCTOBER
11-13, 1893.

This meeting was held with New Harmony church; Wednesday at
10 o'clock the former Moderator called the meeting to order, after sing-
ing, he read Isa. €0:1-14, and Elder K. Windeg, pastor Madisonville Bap-
.tist church, led in prayer. J. M. Sallee, in the absence of G. R. Taylor.
preached the Introductory Sermon from 1 Johu 4:7, and James 1:27; at
the close ot the sermon, T. C. Carter led in prayer. Prof. W. S. Ryland
and Dr. W, I Moore read the letters from the churches; the former, and
Eiders T. S. McCall, W. S. Raney, C. W. Freeman. E. B. Blackburn,
Frank McElroy, Geo. S. Cox. also J. S. Henry and J. H. Dorroh were
visitors. All the churches were represanted except New Hope, Webster
county, located only three miles away, but it reported funds. J. S. Hen-
ry and Frank McElroy acted as letters; I. M. Wise was chosen Modera-
tor, J. H. Spurlin, Assistant Moderator. and P. B. Miller, Clerk. In ac-
cepting the office of Moderator, ‘‘Elder Wise in behalf of Corydon
church, in a brief and abpropriate speech, presented the Association with
a handsome gavel. which was acceped with an appropriate response from
Elder C. H. Gregston in behalf of the Association,” (Min. p. 2). The
fifth marriage anniversary is understood to be the ‘‘wooden” one, so the
union of the two old Associations were thus gelebrated, with a gavel for
the Association’s Moderator; it was made out of material from the church
house where the Ohio Valley Association was organized, five years be-
fore. The Dupuy Baptist church, at Bluff City. Henderson cointy, was
admitted into the Association after due investigation; the name of the
church is to perpetuate the memory of the famous Kentucky Baptist
preacher of French extraction, At nigat Hlder G. R. Taylor preached
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though it may have been too plain, for it used the phrase ~holiness dev-
il, and some fastidicus messengers insisted on an amendunient that
means little or nothing. The report said: *~Your commistee observe
much to encoura e us. as well as much to discourage us in the working
of evan:elical religion among our churches.. We are greatly in need of
two special things, the existence of which will make us more eificient,
viz.: More spirivuality in both p:wand pualpitaud a deeper working of the
spirit of missions, which is the spirit of Christ. Muny of our churches
are able and should double their preaching services within the next year,
To do this we ought to import some more good and efficient pastors. The
Sunday-school record is nothing to be proud of. In some places the
cause is languirhing, where toe union house sentiment has prevailed. In
some sections of our Association, we are sorry to say, the ho:iness or sin-
less perfection idea has neither died nor fled our Dborders. There were
several good wmeetings held during the year and 202 baptisms reported,’’
(Min p. 13). This wassigned by J. C. Craig and J. W. Neel. The re-
port on Obituaries said 87 members had died during the year. J. H.
t{foward reported the resolution, *2nd, That our ministers and members
be more earnest in all things pervaining to the advancewent of the cause
of Christ—especially the mission work. 3rd. That ths older members
of the churches encourage Sunday-schools with their presence and
means;” then the commistee handsomely congratulated New Harmony
church, *‘ror its work and live interest in things spiritual, and suggest to
other church s to emulate its example,” (Min. p. 14). The most interest
of this session centered in District Missions and the Institute at Sturgis,
The Mission Boards through its Chairman, I. M. . ise, said, ‘that al-
though we bave supplied many weak churches and destituté communi-
ties with the true gospel to the extent of our means, yet we feel that ths
moral waste within our bounds is very yreat and rapidly increasing.
We are not unaecessarily alarmed, but believe that unless our weak
churches are regularly sanpplied with preaching, and certain promising
territory occupied with missionaries within the next few years we will
lose much vantage ground. We entreat flie pastors and messengers of
the churches to seriously reflect and pray ov r the destitution, difficulties
and bright prospects of our mission work. To plan and work successful-
ly the brethren need to know more about the fields. 1f they do not visit
them they could read printed reports.” Then attention was called to
Utley’s Chapel, “*where we have been helping ths chuarch for years, and
much encouragement for a good church exists;” this was intended to
“mean that a house would be promptly built, but, alas! Holeman’s Hill
and Hedges’ School House are places ‘‘that deserve to be cultivated.” J,
W. Vaughn labored at Oak Grove and Hopewell school houses, also J, S,
Henry ‘’has accomplished a good work at Mt. Olive.. We think this
courch ought to build a new house at or near Henshaw’s Station on O, V.
railway; Some work has been done at McElroy's School House in the
’Coon country. below Walnut Bottom, and Reyburn School House, a few
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miles below Uniontown. Geneva and Audubon were also helped; *‘we
recommend that a mission be established at Basket Station and that we
encourage them to build a house. W. H. Bell was helped to serve NewHope.
No. 1, and it was thought a house was under construction; but realiy, only
a lot in the woods and a few logs drawn togethei were the result. **A few
Baprists, with outside help, have built a new church (house) at Bluff
City, which was dedicated by Elder J. M. Saliee in November, 1892,” and
1. M. Wise and Deacons and members from Bethel and Hebbardsvilie,
organized Dupuy Baptist church in May, 1893. So unreal are human
hopes! This will prove it. “Sebree has been helped by our Board and
will soon move into their own house. This is an important mission. Our
venerable brother, D, Whittinghill, 1s preaching for them.” This infor-
mation was furnished the Board, butthe fact was the church and commu-
nity were seriously divided as to what side of the L. and N. railway, the
new house should be built; the antagonism caused the Building Commit-
tee to stop preparing to work, some of them resigned, and just before the
messengers left Sebree for the Association,returned about $375 to those that
had given it for a Baptist church, and the building enterprise collapsed.
and came very near ruining the church, For the conclusion of this most
unfortunate affair, the reader is referred to the report of the Mission
Board in the next section. The Baptists of *‘Zion Hill church, who have
been worshipping at Rock House since their church burned, have decided
to build a church at Robards. This'is a promising fieid and needs help,”
(Min..p. 6). Zion Hill church was organized out of most of the members
of the older Pleasant Valley church, that dissolved many years before,
when their little meeting place was burned at Robards, about four years
before, they were induced to go out to the famous Rock House Springs,
some four miles east of Robards, and helped build a goodlog house union
church; it is about three miles south of Pleasant Valley, and about three-
quarters of a mile from Green River. itisan excellent place for Zion
Hill church to keep up a preaching station, receive and baptize members.
The Methodists and Free Will Baptists are fairly represented. Accord-
ing to the Treasurer’s report the folloWing table shows the disburse-
ments: ¥

New Hope (Webster county) to J. Wi Vaughn 92 and 93~ %o 2 $.36 00
Witteyis:Chapel iBlack fondy I WV ahghin: £ coilse LDl OF e s Vg o ok ol
Mt. Olive, Hmslm“ RS H ennyd B AT e A e B AR Ao S 0L
New Hope, No. 2, (Geneva) T. A. Conway B R A OU Bl (R Stk ) 1)
l)upll),Biuﬂ(n_\ |, (A A L TR O e A B ARG P SR o - Lol Y T e N i 1)
NewHope, Nozd Beyond'Green 2 River, N Hy Bell .o b ;b . ahiio st - 27, 00
Sebree Chyrrcly e Wit tiradiTVesss i 7% b gt e S N e 22000
T To D e LIS T T R kT et R SO S S S ) 20 00
Ouk Grove and Hopewell School H()u\m , BB o S 05 ol
Reyburn and McEiroy Scl 1001 FLONSES- Vol /et D v S e L S 16 O

’

Total
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The report of the Board of Trusteesof “*“The Sturgis Male and Fe-
male Institute,” through its chairman, I. M. Wise, brought into the As-
sociation what had been pent up in private for some time : it was a warm
discusgion, and much electricity was in the air. The crucial test was,
considering the financial stringency and darker prospects, whether the
Association should go forward. or entirely abandon the School enter-
prise ; the time had fully come, either to lay the whole movement in its
cold October grave, surrounded by its first, fastest and uncompromising
friends, or to shatter the impracticable and unbusiness-like mefhods that
the Trustees had suffered themselves to adopt, contrary to their better
judgment. It was evident to all. that the thing was being talked to
death, strangled by doubtful surmises, and hampered by the plaa on
which, the Financial Agent was employed : or rather, that which he vol-
unteered, and the Executive Committee, consented to. To guide and
warn futnre Trustees, the substance of the plan was, that the Agent
would collect in cask and bonds, donations. good pledges. etc., $8.000 for
the school, then he was to continue and collect $500 for himself, as pay-
ment for his labors; and if he did not collect it, he would get no pay for
his services. If he did not succeed it would not cost the Trustees anything.
Precious time passed, interest was waning, times were hard and getting
harder, and the Agent, after laboring about 7 days very successfully and
faithfully, would neither work nor resign. By this time, the undaunted
friends of the school, outside of Sturgis, possibly, could have been
counted on the fingers of one hand ; but very few will ever know the
struggles and anxieties of those dark days. Here is the report in full :

“This body of 21 members, appointed by the Association to look af-
ter its school interest, is working as yet without any Constitution and
By-Laws, except as is generally understood to govern such bodies. Our
Committee on Constitution has not yet reported. The Board met in regu-
lar session at the call of the former chairman in November. 1892, at Mor-
ganfield. There being a quorum present, it was decided unanimously to
set the precedent of electing the usual officers, viz.: President, Secretary,
Treasurer, and Executive Committee annually, and at the first regular
meeting after the annual session of the Association. Aftertaking a private
ballot for the usual officers, I. M. Wise was chosen Chairman, T. E. Tay-
lor, Secretary, S. C. Mc@Gill, Treasurer: G. L. Dial. Jerry McGill and
‘W. M. Carr were appointed the Executive Committee, it being understood
that the Chairman was to be a member, ex officio, of the committee.

Certain propositions and conditions hereinafter described, were pres-
ented to the trustees from the Sturgis Land and Iron company. These
were accepted with a few understood constructions of same, and an ad-
journment of the board was taken to Sturgis in February, 1893. There
being no quornm present, the meeting was turned into one of the Ex-
ecutive Committee in consultation with the members of the Board. The
Executive Committee examined the Sturgis $5,000 inducement bonds,
and with the private (Col, Jordau Giles, Dr. J, ., Bailey, G, L. Dial, etc, )
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guarantee of Sturgis citizens, were satisfied that the condiiions had been
fully met. Another meeting was held in Morganfield in May, 1893, and
arrangements were made by which the Executive Committee could put
an agent in the field to collect the required funds from the denomination.
in order to meet the following conditions from the Cumberland Land and
Tron company: We were to accept this offer by January 1, 1898, which
was done by our Board in behalf of the Baptists; commence the erection
ot a building and improvements to cost not less than $12,000, by January
1, 1845; to complete the building by January 1, 1897. We considered
their written proposi'ion to us, which was duly drawn up and signed by
the officers of the Company, as their bond of good faith. The Company
is to convey to the Trustees of the Sturgis Male and Female Institute a
clear deed to the four blocks of lots and intersecting streets, amounting
to about 13 acres of land, when the President of the Company is satisfied
that we are ready to meet the condition of buildding $12.000 improvements
on said land. The Company also pledged to pay into our Treasury $1.000
when oar main building is ready for the roof. We must be prepared to
meet the conditions by January, 1897. The Executive Committee em-
ployed Bro. J. W. Hammack. who has secured about $1,000, (actually
$790,) in bonds. Our school interest is 13 acres of land in Sturgis and
$6,000 (actually $5.555.50) in good bonds. We recommend the most vig-
orous prosecution of this work,” (Min. pp. 11-12.)

During the discussion that followed, the Agent offered his resigna-
tion, as the financial represantative of the School, to the As<ociation ; but
the Moderator ruled that it could be offered, properly, only to the Board
of Trustees, and the matter was referred to the Trustees. J. M. Sallee
otfered the following resolution, which was passed as an amendment to
the Trustees’ report: *'That the Association is satisfied with the work
of the School Board and that we believe Bro. Hammack is the right man
in the right place ; and we hope the Boar 1 will retain his services, if pos-
sible. to complete the work which he has so well begun.” The next sec-
tion will tell whether this conciliation measure was worth the paper it
was written on ; the spirit of it was beautiful and healthfnl ; if those
qualities had been what the School interest needed just at that time, in-
stead of the prompt st and most tactful action. The little story of the
dog in the manger has its useful lessons, but it will not work well except
among irresolute forces : that su'h an earnest and determined body of
men as compose the Ohio Valley Association covll finally anl eutirely be
controlled bv such resorts, can be believed only b those who are not ac-
quaintel with those brethren. — This paragraph is written. not to criticize
anybody or measure, bat to put on record ths embarrassiny facts of his-
tor+, of whi h, that of the Ohio Valley Assocviation has its full share

The following Table of Statisti:s represent the working forees ot the
Association for'the year 18)3. as best it can b= githersl anl eovescted
from the minute :
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having been informed of our action by Eliers Spurlin and Wise, have accepted
and appointed their quota of trustees.

RECOMMEN DATIONS.

“1. We recommend to the Association promptaction through her trustees in:
the prosecution of the work, so that if possible we can open school in September,.
1895.

©2. That we appoint trustees annually and endorse those of the other twos
associations.

$3. That the trustees hold an Educational Convention in Sturgis, cmbracing:
the fifth Sunday in December.”’

At the session of the Association in 1893, it was understood that the:
History of Uniontown Baptist chnrch would be read at the session in
1894. In the meantime. the old women gossip. that floats as poison in so-
many communities. reached Elder Vernon; and he, without consulting the-
Baptists who knew the facts in the case, or referring to the records,.
rushed out in his little sheet, and said in substance, that the Baptists.
had stolen a union house. The old subscription list shows that- the-
Catholics. and possibly the Methodists, gave more to build the house-
than the Campbellites, yet the latter have been the only ones to assert fhe:
false claim. Bat we need not b2 surprised at the unjust claim, when it.
is known that the same brave (?) Captain is concerned in robbing a.
church of its honor and home, that has been trying to collect the odious
Lindle and Caseyville railroad taxes. The Minute, on p. 17, gave the:
following : !

- ‘‘Extract from paper read by I. M. Wise before the Association, Octo--
ber, 1894. ’ ‘ :

“In the history of Highiand church we find this record: “In March-
1848, granted letters to several members to be constituted a church ime
Uniontown, Ky.” The organization was effected in 1848, and Bro. Mor-
rison served if as pastor for some vimme. The church began to arrange for-
a house of worship a few years after, aa1 the old subscription list used
by Deacon James Threlkeld is now (1891) in his daughter’s. hand, Mrs.
Mary Rush. and a true copy is in the church book. It was.the first house-
of worship built in the town, and the dee.l for the lot and the subscrip--
tion list for the house, to cost not less than $2,000—call tor a church for—.
the United Baptist Church in Uniontowu. Deacon Threlkeld and Bro..
Morrison made liberal contributions to this building fund. As it was:
the first church house built in Uniontown many outsiders, as Methodists,.
Presbyterians, Campbellites and Catholics, made contributions, but no»
one then thought of claiming the house as a Union house. Dr. J. S.
Coleman preached the dedication sermon, and it was publicly stated that-
other denominations could use the house when it was not occupied by
the Baptists. Some years after the Campbellites claimed an interest in:
the house as a union house, and consequently they were denied this:
claim and were justly shut out of the use of it. This unfounded clainm
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very brother walking disorderly, and not after the instruction which ye re-
ceived from us,” (2 Thes. 3:6, 7, 11). It should be remembered, that it is not the
man himself to say whether his opininn is *‘heresy,” but this unique prerogative
belongs to God as revealed in His Word, and given into the executive power of
the churches; for those that continued in their fellowship, al«o continued in their
doctrine (Acts 2:41, 42). To Timothy Paulsaid: ‘‘Take'heed to thyself, and to the
teaching; continue in them ; for in doing this thou wilt save both thyself, and
those who hear thee, (1 Tim. 4:16). The letters to the Seven Churches, in Rev. 1:4
to 3:22, conclusively show the possibility of individuals and churches becoming
heretical, and that their lamp might be removed.

Secrion 1. CarHoLicisM—The almost universal use of the word *‘Catholic,”
as applied to what is generally known as Romanism, shows how ideas grow and
virtually chan:e their meaning. The word is composed of katha, which means
‘‘according as,” *‘just as’’ and holos, which means ‘‘whole,” ‘“‘entire,” ‘‘com-
plete;”’ these two words combined make ‘“Kath’olou,” which means “wholly,
entirely, at atl” (Thayer, p. 314), and has a wide range of usage in the Bible, and
sometimes so general in its meaning as to escépe the Eoglish translation, as in
Bx. 22:11; Amos 3 3, 4; and Ezek. 13:3, 22; althouzh in each passage the word
is found in the old Greek Testament. In the only place where found in the New
Testament it is fully expressed as ‘‘they charged then: not tospeak ‘at all,” nor
teach, in the name of Jesus” (Acts 4.18) So an innocent word of very general
Ileealling' hus been made to serve for the most bigoted purpose, namely, that the
Romanist religion is the general, universal, ‘‘whole, entire, complete’ religion,
and that outside of that there is no salvation. In after Biblical times the word
has an historical growth, with all the force of its correct and perverted meaning.
: (1.) IenarIus, who died about A. D. 115, left some ‘‘Letters’” that have been
badly corrupted by designing men in after ages; and should his writings be re-
liable, which is extremely uncertain, furnish the first ecclesiastical use of the
word when he is supposed to have said: ‘‘Where Christ Jesus is, there is the
Catholic church,” (Smyrn. chap. 8). To the Ephesians he is said to have written :
*For if the prayer of one or two possesses such power, how much more that of
the bishop and the whole ch ireh,” (Chap. 5). The very doubtful “Letter” of
Smyrna on the death of Polycarp, which Lipsius and' Keim think was written
about 260, says: *‘The holy and Catholic church in every place,” also *The whole
Catholic church throughout the world,” (Chap. 8).

(2.) IrexAgus, who died about A. D. 202, said “‘in every church,” “bishops in
the churches,” ‘“‘the snccessions of ail the churches;”’ and speaking of the church
that afterwards became so corrupt, “‘the very ancient, and universally known
church founded and organized at Rome by the two most glorious apostles, Peter

and Paul’; again, ‘“‘where the church is, there is the spirit of God; and
where the spirit of God is, there is the church, and every kind of grace,” (Advo.
Haer. I11. 24). Even with the doubtful Latin text of Iransus, there is but
little encouragement in his writings for Romanism. The assertion that the
church at Rome was founded by Peter and Paul is the repetition of tradition that
is contradictory; for it was organized before Paul went to Rome.

©(3.) CypriaN, who was martyred in A. D 258, was a man of great ambition,
zeal and assumed humility; to him is largely due the doubtful glory of develop-
ing the Romish idea of the Catholic church, and its accompanying nctes of
“universality,” “unity’’ and “‘exclusiveness,” although he never recognized the
supremacy of the Roman bishop, exceptin his own diocese, (See Schaff., qist. I.
172).  He strove for “unity” of men’s bodies as well as “spirits’” and said, “'this
unity we ought firmly to hold and assert, especially those of us that are bishops
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who preside in the church, that we may also proye the episcopate itself to be
one and undivided,” (Unity of the Ch., 1, 5). Again: ‘‘He can no longer have
God for his Father, who lias not the church for his mother,” and compares thi$
mother ¢ wurch to Noah’s Ark,” (Id. 6); ‘‘do you think that you can stand and
live 1f you withdraw from the chureh,” **nor is there any other home to the be-
lievers but the one church,” (Id. 8). He said Christ is not with any who are
outside of the church, and that “he cannot be a martyr who is not in the
churca,” (Id. 14). “Out of this empirical orthodox church, especially organized
and ceutralized 1n Rome, Cyprian can imagine no Christianity at all,” (Schaff,
Hist. I1. 113), aud hence no salvation vuts.de the Catbolic church! See how the
poisonous germs of Romanism were scattered and growing in the 3rd century.
{4.) IMPERIALISM AND UNIVERSAL%EPISCOPACY. 1o 311, the Emperor Galerius
issued, in connection with Coustantine and Licinius, an edict of toleration to the
Chrisuans, “‘provided tuey disturbed not the order of the state’”” by proselyting
from che heathen religions, &c  But after Constantine had wou the victory at the
 Milvian bridze in 313, he and Licinius met at Milan, “and issued a new edict of
toteration,” which went far beyond the first; ‘‘it was a decisive step from hostile
neutrality to friendly neutrality aud protection, and prepared the way for the
legat recognition of Christianity, as the retigion of the empire,” (Schaff, IIL. 72).
It was soon discovered that Curistianity was helpful as a political factor, and so
the “Cathoiic” or “*general” council was called at Nice in 325, and the “union of
church aad state” was effected.  As the emperor commanded it, and ordered all
facihties and expenses. possibie, to be furnished by the Empire. many went into
the “union,” but maay, as tue Montanists and Novatians, did not. The impe-
rial conn-ction .ave much stimulus to the advocates of “Episcopacy’ and
“Catholicisim,’” among both the Greeks in tne east and gthe Latins in the west.
Gregory I called himself *‘the servant of the servants of God” while he was
bishop of Rme, a 1d his cotemporary, John, bishop of Constantinople caused
nimself to ve styled “universa bishop.” Gregory I put Phocis, who became em-
peror under peculiar circumstances, under lasting ooligations to the Roman See
by the timeiy deith of Mauritius the emperor (See Platina ‘‘Lives of the Popes,”
I. 139)  Gregory I sent aspecial messznger to Phocas demanding that the bishop
or patriarch of Uonstantinopie shonld give up the title of universal bishop, and in
607 Pnocas compelled the Greek priest to yield the honor to the Latin one; and
this speciar messenger, after Sabian I. diéd, became ‘‘Boniface III. a Roman,
with much ado obtained of the Emperor Phocas, that the see of St. Peter, the
apostieshouid by all be acknowledged and sty ed the head of all the churches,”
(Platina, I. 141—a Catholic author) The decree of Infallibility of the Pope
(1869-1870) was reached with much strife.
(5 ) RoMaN CarHoLics 1N Kentucky. Dr Spencer says: ‘‘Two Roman Catho-
lic fam lies, those of Dr Hart and Wm. Coomes, settled in Harrodsburg in 1775,
where Dr. H. began at once to practice medicine and Mrs. C. to teach school. Af-
ter a few years, these, with other Catholic families, seitled near Bardstown. In
1785, a large colony of Catholics from Maryland, settled on, Pottinger’s creek in
Nelson county. By 1787, there were abour fifty Cathoiic families in Kentucky.
During this yea , Mr. Wheian, an Irish priest, came to the new country and minis-
tered to the Catholics about three years. Mr. Boden, who came out in 1793, was
their next priest. At this date the number of Catholic families in the state was
estimated at 300. From that time we have no estimate of their numb-er till 1846,
when there was supposed to be about 6,000 families,” (Hist. Ky. Baptists, I. 565).
Possibly, the next colonies that were planted were in Lexington and Louisville,
but early in the 19th century, the Catholics planted colonies and schools in Da-
viess and Union counties, and more recently in Henderson and Paducah. ’
SECTION 2. CAmPBELLISM—The ~writer feels the importance of dogng
all religious parties impartial justice, in giving historical facts and defining
their various opinions. It isdifficult to see, however, the difference between
baptismal regeneration, whether it be attained, either by effusion or immersion,
so far as the end is concerned. If a soul is saved through water in any sense,
except in a figure, whether infant or adult, that is, if the design of baptism is to
procure the remission of sin, and thereby make the baptised a member of the
Kingdom of Heaven, the difference between the Catholie and true-blue Camp-
bellite is simply that between quautity of water differently applied and the age of
the candidate. The liberal Catholic will admit she possibility of the non-Catholic’s
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